

VIRGINIA ACTS OF ASSEMBLY — CHAPTER

An Act to amend and reenact §§ 46.2-2812, 46.2-2814, 46.2-2819, 46.2-2820, and 46.2-2824 of the Code of Virginia, relating to towing and recovery licenses; emergency.

[H 2505]

Approved

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:

1. That §§ 46.2-2812, 46.2-2814, 46.2-2819, 46.2-2820, and 46.2-2824 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted as follows:

§ 46.2-2812. Licenses required.

On and after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, it shall be unlawful for any person to engage in business in the Commonwealth as a towing and recovery operator without first obtaining a license as a Class A or Class B operator as provided in this chapter. Any violation of any provision of this section on or after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor.

§ 46.2-2814. Drivers to have tow truck driver authorization document.

The Board shall issue to tow truck drivers who meet such qualifications as the Board shall have established a document authorizing the holder to drive a tow truck. Such documents shall be valid for such period of time as the Board shall provide by regulation. The Board may also provide by regulation for the issuance of temporary tow truck driver authorization documents, valid for less than five years, to non-Virginia residents.

On and after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, no tow truck shall be operated in the Commonwealth by any person who does not have such tow truck driver authorization document unless the driver of the tow truck (i) is towing a vehicle from an origin in another state and is passing through the Commonwealth to a destination outside the Commonwealth, or (ii) is towing a vehicle from an origin in another state to a destination in the Commonwealth, or (iii) is operating a tow truck that has not engaged a towed vehicle by a physical, mechanical means that causes the towed vehicle to be moved or lifted off the ground. Such document shall be in addition to whatever driver's license or commercial driver's license is required for operation of the vehicle under Chapter 3 (§ 46.2-300 et seq.) of this title. No driver shall be deemed by the Board to be qualified to drive a tow truck unless he provides to the Board a written statement that he is employed by or engaged to be employed by the licensed operator and is not required to register as a sex offender as provided in § 9.1-901 or in a substantially similar law of any other state, the United States, or any foreign jurisdiction. The Board may charge a reasonable fee for the issuance of such document in an amount calculated to cover its actual and necessary expenses.

The Board shall require every applicant for a tow truck driver authorization document to submit to fingerprinting and provide personal descriptive information to be forwarded along with the applicant's fingerprints through the Central Criminal Records Exchange to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the purpose of obtaining a national criminal history record check regarding such applicant. The cost of the fingerprinting and criminal history records check shall be paid by the applicant.

The Central Criminal Records Exchange, upon receipt of an applicant's record or notification that no record exists, shall make a report to the Board. If an applicant is denied a tow truck driver authorization document because of the information appearing in his criminal history record, the Board shall notify the applicant that information obtained from the Central Criminal Records Exchange contributed to such denial. The information shall not be disseminated except as provided in this section.

§ 46.2-2819. License to be displayed.

On and after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, every person engaged in towing and recovery services shall display his license in a conspicuous place in the principal office in which he operates.

§ 46.2-2820. Prohibited acts.

On and after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, it shall be unlawful for any person:

1. To engage in the towing and recovery of vehicles without holding a license as an operator issued by the Board;

2. To impersonate a licensed operator of a like or different name;

3. To do any act for which, if he were a licensed operator, could be revoked as provided by this chapter or regulations of the Board;

4. To publish or cause to be published in any manner an advertisement that is false, deceptive, or misleading, or violates regulations of the Board governing advertising by towing and recovery operators; or

5. To provide any towing and recovery services for vehicles of a gross vehicle weight over 26,000

ENROLLED

HB2505ER

57 pounds unless licensed as a Class A operator.

58 § 46.2-2824. License required.

59 On and after ~~January 1~~ *July 1*, 2009, no person shall offer to engage in or engage in the towing and
60 recovery of vehicles without a valid license from the Board.

61 **2. That an emergency exists and this act is in force from its passage.**